

# Royal



# Gazette

## Part II Regulations under the Regulations Act

---

*Printed by the Queen's Printer*

Halifax, Nova Scotia

Vol. 42, No. 15

July 20, 2018

### Contents

Act	Reg. No.	Page
<b>Children and Family Services Act</b>		
Children and Family Services Regulations–amendment. . . . .	120/2018	400
<b>Crop and Livestock Insurance Act</b>		
Crop Insurance Plan for Acreage Loss–amendment. . . . .	104/2018	387
Crop Insurance Plan for Blueberries–amendment. . . . .	105/2018	388
Crop Insurance Plan for Corn–amendment. . . . .	106/2018	388
Crop Insurance Plan for Forage–amendment. . . . .	107/2018	389
Crop Insurance Plan for Grapes–amendment. . . . .	108/2018	390
Crop Insurance Plan for Potatoes–amendment. . . . .	109/2018	391
Crop Insurance Plan for Raspberries–amendment. . . . .	110/2018	392
Crop Insurance Plan for Soybeans–amendment. . . . .	111/2018	392
Crop Insurance Plan for Spring Grain–amendment. . . . .	112/2018	393
Crop Insurance Plan for Strawberries–amendment. . . . .	113/2018	394
Crop Insurance Plan for Tree Fruit–amendment. . . . .	114/2018	395
Crop Insurance Plan for Trees–amendment. . . . .	115/2018	396
Crop Insurance Plan for Vegetables–amendment. . . . .	116/2018	397
Crop Insurance Plan for Weather–amendment. . . . .	117/2018	398
Crop Insurance Plan for Winter Grain–amendment. . . . .	118/2018	399
General Field Crop Insurance Plans Regulations–amendment. . . . .	103/2018	385
Maple Syrup Insurance Plan–amendment. . . . .	119/2018	399
<b>Environment Act</b>		
On-site Services Advisory Board Regulations–repeal. . . . .	123/2018	407
Solid Waste-Resource Management Regulations–amendment. . . . .	124/2018	408
<b>Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act</b>		
Proclamation of Act, S. 29, S.N.S. 2017, c. 7. . . . .	125/2018	409
Intimate Images and Cyber-protection General Regulations. . . . .	126/2018	410
Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Records Regulations. . . . .	101/2018	380

**Petroleum Products Pricing Act**

Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations—amendment.....	121/2018	404
Prescribed Petroleum Products Prices.....	102/2018	382
Prescribed Petroleum Products Prices.....	127/2018	411

**Public Services Sustainability (2015) Act**

Public Services Sustainability General Regulations—amendment.....	122/2018	406
---	----------	-----

**Summary Proceedings Act**

Summary Offence Tickets Regulations—amendment.....	100/2018	379
--	----------	-----

**In force date of regulations:** As of March 4, 2005\*, the date a regulation comes into force is determined by subsection 3(6) of the *Regulations Act*. The date a regulation is made, the date a regulation is approved, the date a regulation is filed and any date specified in a regulation are important to determine when the regulation is in force.

\*Date that subsections 3(6) and (7) and Sections 11 and 13 of the *Regulations Act* and amendments to the *Regulations Act* made by Chapter 46 of the Acts of 2004 were proclaimed in force.

**N.S. Reg. 100/2018**

Made: June 26, 2018

Filed: June 27, 2018

Summary Offence Tickets Regulations—amendment

Order dated June 26, 2018

Amendment to regulations made by the Attorney General and Minister of Justice pursuant to Section 8 of the *Summary Proceedings Act***Order****Made under Section 8 of Chapter 450  
of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Summary Proceedings Act***

I, Mark Furey, Attorney General and Minister of Justice for the Province of Nova Scotia, pursuant to Section 8 of Chapter 450 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989, the *Summary Proceedings Act*, effective on and after the date of this order, hereby

- (a) amend the *Summary Offence Tickets Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 281/2011, made by order of the Attorney General and Minister of Justice dated October 4, 2011, to designate certain offences under the *Fishing Regulations* made under the *Wildlife Act* as summary offence ticket offences, in the manner set forth in the attached Schedule “A”; and
- (b) order and direct that the penalty to be entered on a summons in respect of an offence set out in amendments to the schedules to the *Summary Offence Tickets Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 281/2011, as set forth in the attached Schedule “A”, is the amount of the out-of-court settlement set out opposite the description of that offence, and the out-of-court settlement amount includes the charge provided for in, and in accordance with, Sections 8 and 9 of the Act.

Dated and made June 26, 2018, at Halifax, Halifax Regional Municipality, Province of Nova Scotia.

sgd: *Mark Furey*

Honourable Mark Furey

Attorney General and Minister of Justice

**Schedule “A”****Amendment to the *Summary Offence Tickets Regulations*  
made by the Attorney General and Minister of Justice pursuant to Section 8  
of Chapter 450 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Summary Proceedings Act***

Schedule 15A to the *Summary Offence Tickets Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 281/2011, made by order of the Attorney General and Minister of Justice dated October 4, 2011, is amended by striking out items 1 to 13 under the heading “Fishing Regulations” and substituting the following items:

1 Fishing without valid Resident General Fishing Licence	5(1)(a)	\$237.50
2 Fishing without valid Non-Resident General Fishing Licence	5(1)(b)	\$237.50
3 Fishing Atlantic salmon without valid Resident Salmon Fishing Licence	5(2)(a)	\$237.50

---

4 Fishing Atlantic salmon without valid Non-Resident Salmon Fishing Licence	5(2)(b)	\$237.50
5 Failing to produce proof of age and residency upon demand by conservation officer	12	\$180.00
6 Failing to submit information respecting fish required by licence within 7 days of close of open season	14(1)	\$180.00

---

**N.S. Reg. 101/2018**

Made: May 8, 2018

Filed: June 28, 2018

Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Records Regulations

Order dated May 8, 2018

Regulations made by the Minister of Justice  
pursuant to subsection 15(1) of the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act***Order****In the matter of subsection 15(1) of Chapter 7 of the Acts of 2017,  
the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act*****- and -****In the matter of regulations respecting records  
made by the Minister of Justice under subsection 15(1) of  
the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act***

I, Mark Furey, Minister of Justice for the Province of Nova Scotia, pursuant to subsection 15(1) of Chapter 7 of the Acts of 2017, the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act*, hereby make regulations respecting records to be kept by the agency under Section 5 of the Act in the form set forth in the attached Schedule "A".

This order is effective on and after the date that Chapter 7 of the Acts of 2017, the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act*, comes into force on proclamation.

Dated and made at Halifax, Nova Scotia, May 8, 2018.

sgd: *Mark Furey*  
Honourable Mark Furey  
Minister of Justice

**Schedule "A"****Regulations Respecting Records  
made by the Minister of Justice under subsection 15(1)  
of Chapter 7 of the Acts of 2017,  
the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act*****Citation**

1 These regulations may be cited as the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Records Regulations*.

**Definitions**

2 In these regulations,

“Act” means the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act*;

“General Regulations” means the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection General Regulations* made under the Act;

“personal information” means personal information related to intimate image distribution without consent or cyber-bullying that is collected by the agency as authorized by Section 4 of the General Regulations.

**Agency records**

3 The agency must keep a record of all of the following details in relation to any individual about whom the agency collects personal information:

- (a) name;
- (b) age;
- (c) gender;
- (d) geographical location;
- (e) contact information;
- (f) any information the agency considers necessary for it to carry out duties and provide services in accordance with the Act and the General Regulations;
- (g) any information the Minister considers necessary for the purpose of the review of the effectiveness of the Act in meeting its purposes required by Section 14 of the Act.

**N.S. Reg. 102/2018**

Made: June 28, 2018

Filed: June 29, 2018

Prescribed Petroleum Products Prices

Order dated June 28, 2018  
made by the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board  
pursuant to Section 14 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act*  
and Sections 16 to 19 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations*

**Order****M08763****In the matter of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act*****- and -****In the matter of prescribing prices for petroleum products  
pursuant to Section 14 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act* and  
Sections 16 to 19 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations*****Before:** Roland A. Deveau, Q.C., Vice Chair

**Whereas** the purpose of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations* is to ensure just and reasonable prices for specified petroleum products taking into consideration the objectives of preserving the availability of such products in rural areas, stabilizing prices of such products and minimizing the variances in prices of such products across the Province;

**And whereas** the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board (Board) considered the manner in which it would proceed to set petroleum product prices in its decision, 2006 NSUARB 108, issued on October 16, 2006;

**And whereas** the Board revised the wholesale margin effective January 4, 2013, in its decision, 2012 NSUARB 213, issued on December 12, 2012;

**And whereas** the Board revised the retail margin and the transportation allowance effective October 28, 2016, in its decision, 2016 NSUARB 168, issued on September 26, 2016;

**And whereas** the average of the average of the daily high and low reported product prices (in Canadian cents) for the week ended June 27, 2018, are:

Grade 1 Regular gasoline	71.1¢ per litre
Ultra-low-sulfur diesel oil	74.5¢ per litre

**Now therefore** the Board prescribes the benchmark prices for petroleum products to be:

Gasoline:	
Grade 1	71.1¢ per litre
Grade 2	74.1¢ per litre
Grade 3	77.1¢ per litre
Ultra-low-sulfur diesel oil	74.5¢ per litre

**And now therefore** the Board has determined, based on historical data regarding price changes and to achieve revenue neutrality, it is appropriate to apply, and the Board so orders, forward averaging corrections of:

Gasoline:	nil per litre
Ultra-low-sulfur diesel oil:	plus 0.2¢ per litre

**And now therefore** the Board prescribes the prices for petroleum products as set forth in Schedule "A" effective on and after 12:01 a.m., June 29, 2018.

Dated at Halifax, Nova Scotia, this 28th day of June, 2018.

sgd: Bruce A. Kiley  
Clerk of the Board

### Schedule "A"

**Prices Prescribed for Petroleum Products  
under the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act* and the  
*Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations*  
effective on and after 12:01 a.m. on June 29, 2018**

Nova Scotia Petroleum Price Schedule								
Petroleum Prices in Cents/Litre					Self-Service Pump Prices (Pump Prices includes 15% HST)		Full-Service Pump Prices	
	Base Wholesale Price	Fed. Excise Tax	Prov. Tax	Wholesale Selling Price	Min	Max	Min	Max
<b>Zone 1</b>								
Regular Unleaded	78.3	10.0	15.5	103.8	125.2	127.4	125.2	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	81.3	10.0	15.5	106.8	128.7	130.9	128.7	999.9
Premium Unleaded	84.3	10.0	15.5	109.8	132.1	134.3	132.1	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	82.0	4.0	15.4	101.4	122.5	124.7	122.5	999.9
<b>Zone 2</b>								
Regular Unleaded	78.8	10.0	15.5	104.3	125.8	128.0	125.8	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	81.8	10.0	15.5	107.3	129.3	131.4	129.3	999.9
Premium Unleaded	84.8	10.0	15.5	110.3	132.7	134.9	132.7	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	82.5	4.0	15.4	101.9	123.0	125.2	123.0	999.9
<b>Zone 3</b>								
Regular Unleaded	79.2	10.0	15.5	104.7	126.3	128.5	126.3	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	82.2	10.0	15.5	107.7	129.7	131.9	129.7	999.9
Premium Unleaded	85.2	10.0	15.5	110.7	133.2	135.4	133.2	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	82.9	4.0	15.4	102.3	123.5	125.7	123.5	999.9
<b>Zone 4</b>								
Regular Unleaded	79.3	10.0	15.5	104.8	126.4	128.6	126.4	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	82.3	10.0	15.5	107.8	129.8	132.0	129.8	999.9
Premium Unleaded	85.3	10.0	15.5	110.8	133.3	135.5	133.3	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	83.0	4.0	15.4	102.4	123.6	125.8	123.6	999.9
<b>Zone 5</b>								
Regular Unleaded	79.3	10.0	15.5	104.8	126.4	128.6	126.4	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	82.3	10.0	15.5	107.8	129.8	132.0	129.8	999.9
Premium Unleaded	85.3	10.0	15.5	110.8	133.3	135.5	133.3	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	83.0	4.0	15.4	102.4	123.6	125.8	123.6	999.9
<b>Zone 6</b>								
Regular Unleaded	80.0	10.0	15.5	105.5	127.2	129.4	127.2	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	83.0	10.0	15.5	108.5	130.6	132.8	130.6	999.9
Premium Unleaded	86.0	10.0	15.5	111.5	134.1	136.3	134.1	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	83.7	4.0	15.4	103.1	124.4	126.6	124.4	999.9

**N.S. Reg. 103/2018 to 119/2018**

Made: July 28, 2017

Approved: July 3, 2018

Filed: July 4, 2018

General Field Crop Insurance Plan Regulations—amendment;  
Various Crop Insurance Plans—amendment

Order in Council 2018-175 dated July 3, 2018

Amendment to regulations made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
and approved by the Governor in Council pursuant to Section 6  
of the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act*

The Governor in Council on the report and recommendation of the Minister of Agriculture dated May 22, 2018, and pursuant to Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989, the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act*, is pleased, effective on and after July 3, 2018, to approve amendments made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission to

- (a) the *General Field Crop Insurance Plans Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 7/2012, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2012-6 dated January 10, 2012, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “A”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;
- (b) the *Crop Insurance Plan for Acreage Loss*, N.S. Reg. 51/2016, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2016-73 dated March 29, 2016, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “B”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;
- (c) the *Crop Insurance Plan for Blueberries*, N.S. Reg. 134/2002, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2002-487 dated November 1, 2002, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “C”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;
- (d) the *Crop Insurance Plan for Corn*, N.S. Reg. 134/2002, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2002-487 dated November 1, 2002, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “D”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;
- (e) the *Crop Insurance Plan for Forage*, N.S. Reg. 6/95, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 95-21 dated January 3, 1995, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “E”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;
- (f) the *Crop Insurance Plan for Grapes*, N.S. Reg. 342/2015, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2015-332 dated October 20, 2015, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “F”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;
- (g) the *Crop Insurance Plan for Potatoes*, N.S. Reg. 114/2002, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2002-407 dated September 13, 2002, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “G”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;
- (h) the *Crop Insurance Plan for Raspberries*, N.S. Reg. 90/99, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 1999-440 dated September 14, 1999, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “H”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;



- (i) the *Crop Insurance Plan for Soybeans*, N.S. Reg. 51/2003, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2003-89 dated March 14, 2003, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “I”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;
- (j) the *Crop Insurance Plan for Spring Grain*, N.S. Reg. 50/2003, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2003-88 dated March 14, 2003, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “J”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;
- (k) the *Crop Insurance Plan for Strawberries*, N.S. Reg. 6/95, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 95-21 dated January 3, 1995, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “K”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;
- ⊕ [(l)] the *Crop Insurance Plan for Tree Fruit*, N.S. Reg. 121/2003, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2003-268 dated June 20, 2003, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “L”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;
- (m) the *Crop Insurance Plan for Trees*, N.S. Reg. 14/95, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 95-63 dated January 24, 1995, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “M”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;
- (n) the *Crop Insurance Plan for Vegetables*, N.S. Reg. 192/2000, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2000-571 dated November 17, 2000, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “N”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;
- (o) the *Crop Insurance Plan for Weather*, N.S. ~~Reg.~~ [Reg.] 124/2006, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2006-343 dated July 24, 2006, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “~~O~~” [“O”], attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation;
- (p) the *Crop Insurance Plan for Winter Grain*, N.S. ~~Reg.~~ [Reg.] 134/2002, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2002-487 dated November 1, 2002, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “P”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation; and
- (q) the *Maple Syrup Insurance Plan*, N.S. ~~Reg.~~ [Reg.] 11/2012, made by the Commission and approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2012-6 dated January 10, 2012, in the ~~form~~ [manner] set forth in Schedule “Q”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation.

**N.S. Reg. 103/2018**

## General Field Crop Insurance Plans Regulations

**Schedule “A”****Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *General Field Crop Insurance Plans Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 7/2012, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2012-6 dated January 10, 2012, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *General Field Crop Insurance Plans Regulations*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

- 1 The *General Field Crop Insurance Plans Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 7/2012, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2012-6 dated January 10, 2012, are amended by striking out “Field” in Section 1.
- 2 Subsection 2(2) of the regulations is amended by
  - (a) adding “of insurance” immediately after “If a plan”; and
  - (b) striking out “these regulations” immediately after “stated otherwise in” and substituting “the plan of insurance”.
- 3 Section 3 of the regulations is repealed and the following Section is substituted:

**Insurable persons**

  - 3 (1) In these regulations and all plans respecting insurable crops, “insurable person” means a person who is eligible for crop insurance.
  - (2) A person who meets all of the following criteria is designated as an insurable person for the purposes of a plan established for an insurable crop:
    - (a) the person owns and operates, or leases and operates, a farm in the Province;
    - (b) the person produces the insurable crop on the farm.
  - (3) If a person who entered a contract of insurance with the Commission no longer meets the criteria for designation as an insurable person for all or part of an insurable crop, the Commission is not liable for payment of any indemnity to the person for that portion of the insurable crop.
- 4 Section 8 of the regulations is repealed.
- 5 Form 1 of the regulations is amended by
  - (a) striking out “Field” in the form title;
  - (b) striking out “Field” in the third paragraph of the recitals;

- (c) striking out “General Regulations” wherever it appears in the recitals and substituting “Regulations”;
- (d) repealing Section 1A; and
- (e) striking out “Section 7” in clause 11(4)(b) and substituting “Section 8”.

---

**N.S. Reg. 104/2018**

Crop Insurance Plan for Acreage Loss

**Schedule “B”****Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Acreage Loss*, N.S. Reg. 51/2016, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2016-73 dated March 29, 2016, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: *sgd: Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Acreage Loss*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

- 1 Section 3 of the *Crop Insurance Plan for Acreage Loss*, N.S. Reg. 51/2016, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2016-73 dated March 29, 2016, is amended by striking out “Field” in the definition of “terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance”.
- 2 Section 9 of the regulations is repealed and the following Section is substituted:

**Coverage**

- 9 (1)** All the area of each type of vegetable owned or operated by an insured person and to be harvested is eligible to be offered for insurance coverage.
- (2)** If an insured person offers an area of vegetables for insurance coverage, the entire area of that vegetable type must be offered for insurance coverage.
- (3)** The Commission may insure all or part of an area of vegetables offered for insurance coverage.

- (4) On written application by an insured person, the Commission may insure a vegetable crop on the basis of variety, area, agronomic practice or specified perils.
- 

**N.S. Reg. 105/2018**

Crop Insurance Plan for Blueberries

**Schedule “C”****Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Blueberries*, N.S. Reg. 134/2002, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2002-487 dated November 1, 2002, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Blueberries*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

Subsection 3(1) of the *Crop Insurance Plan for Blueberries*, N.S. Reg. 134/2002, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2002-487 dated November 1, 2002, is amended by striking out “Field” in the definition of “terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance”.

---

**N.S. Reg. 106/2018**

Crop Insurance Plan for Corn

**Schedule “D”****Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Corn*, N.S. Reg. 134/2002, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2002-487 dated November 1, 2002, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Corn*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

- 1 Subsection 3(1) of the *Crop Insurance Plan for Corn*, N.S. Reg. 134/2002, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2002-487 dated November 1, 2002, is amended by
- (a) striking out “Field” in the definition of “terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance”;
  - (b) adding “, including the Town of Windsor” immediately after “West Hants” in the definition of “Zone 1”;
  - (c) repealing the definition of “Zone 2” and substituting the following definition:  
  
“Zone 2” means the area of the Province that consists of the Municipality of the District of East Hants, Halifax Regional Municipality and Colchester County;
  - (d) adding the following definition immediately after the definition of “Zone 2”:  
  
“Zone 3” means all areas of the Province outside Zone 1 and Zone 2.
- 2 Subsection 17(1) of the regulations is amended by striking out “shall be June 15 in Zone 1 and June 8 in Zone 2” and substituting “in each Zone must be announced by the Commission before the beginning of the crop year”.

---

**N.S. Reg. 107/2018**

Crop Insurance Plan for Forage

**Schedule “E”**

**Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Forage*, N.S. Reg. 6/95, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 95-21 dated January 3, 1995, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Forage*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

The *Crop Insurance Plan for Forage*, N.S. Reg. 6/95, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 95-21 dated January 3, 1995, is amended by striking out “Field” in Section 7.

---

**N.S. Reg. 108/2018**

Crop Insurance Plan for Grapes

**Schedule “F”**

**Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Grapes*, N.S. Reg. 342/2015, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2015-332 dated October 20, 2015, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Grapes*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

Section 3 of the *Crop Insurance Plan for Grapes*, N.S. Reg. 342/2015, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2015-332 dated October 20, 2015, is amended by striking out “Field” in the definition of “terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance”.

**N.S. Reg. 109/2018**

Crop Insurance Plan for Potatoes

**Schedule “G”****Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Potatoes*, N.S. Reg. 114/2002, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2002-407 dated September 13, 2002, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Potatoes*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

- 1 Section 3 of the *Crop Insurance Plan for Potatoes*, N.S. Reg. 114/2002, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2002-407 dated September 13, 2002, is amended by
- (a) striking out “Field” in the definition of “terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance”;
  - (b) adding “, including the Town of Windsor” immediately after “West Hants” in the definition of “Zone 1”;
  - (c) repealing the definition of “Zone 2” and substituting the following definition:  

“Zone 2” means the area of the Province that consists of the Municipality of the District of East Hants, Halifax Regional Municipality and Colchester County;
  - (d) adding the following definition immediately after the definition of “Zone 2”:  

“Zone 3” means all areas of the Province outside Zone 1 and Zone 2.
- 2 Subsection 17(1) of the regulations is amended by striking out “shall be June 15 in Zone 1 and June 8 in Zone 2” and substituting “in each Zone must be announced by the Commission before the beginning of the crop year”.

**N.S. Reg. 110/2018**

Crop Insurance Plan for Raspberries

**Schedule “H”****Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Raspberries*, N.S. Reg. 90/99, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 1999-440 dated September 14, 1999, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Raspberries*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

Subsection 3(1) of the *Crop Insurance Plan for Raspberries*, N.S. Reg. 90/99, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 1999-440 dated September 14, 1999, is amended by

- (a) striking out “and Marketing” in the definition of “raspberries”; and
- (b) striking out “Field” in the definition of “terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance”.

---

**N.S. Reg. 111/2018**

Crop Insurance Plan for Soybeans

**Schedule “I”****Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Soybeans*, N.S. Reg. 51/2003, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2003-89 dated March 14, 2003, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.



Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Soybeans*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

1 Section 3 of the *Crop Insurance Plan for Soybeans*, N.S. Reg. 51/2003, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2003-89 dated March 14, 2003, is amended by striking out “Field” in the definition of “terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance”.

2 Section 17 of the regulations is repealed and the following Section substituted:

**Final planting date**

17 (1) The final date for planting soybeans in each Zone must be announced by the Commission before the beginning of the crop year.

(2) Despite the final planting date in subsection (1), the Commission may insure any area of soybean planted up to 7 days after the final planting date, but shall reduce the coverage on that area by 5% for each day after the final planting date that the area remains unplanted.

---

**N.S. Reg. 112/2018**

Crop Insurance Plan for Spring Grain

**Schedule “J”**

**Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Spring Grain*, N.S. Reg. 50/2003, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2003-88 dated March 14, 2003, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Spring Grain*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

- 1 Section 3 of the *Crop Insurance Plan for Spring Grain*, N.S. Reg. 50/2003, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2003-88 dated March 14, 2003, is amended by
- (a) repealing the definition of “mixed grain”;
  - (b) striking out “, wheat and mixed grain” in the definition of “spring grain” and substituting “and wheat”;
  - (c) striking out “Field” in the definition of “terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance”;
  - (d) adding “, including the Town of Windsor” immediately after “West Hants” in the definition of “Zone 1”;
  - (e) repealing the definition of “Zone 2” and substituting the following definition:  

“Zone 2” means the area of the Province that consists of the Municipality of the District of East Hants, Halifax Regional Municipality and Colchester County;
  - (f) adding the following definition immediately after the definition of “Zone 2”:  

“Zone 3” means all areas of the Province outside Zone 1 and Zone 2.
- 2 Subsection 17(1) of the regulations is amended by striking out “shall be June 15 in Zone 1 and June 8 in Zone 2” and substituting “in each Zone must be announced by the Commission before the beginning of the crop year”.
- 3 The table in subsection 25(3) of the regulations is amended by striking out the row that begins with “Mixed Grain”.
- 4 The regulations are further amended by striking out “by” in subsection 29(3) and substituting “be”.

---

**N.S. Reg. 113/2018**

Crop Insurance Plan for Strawberries

**Schedule “K”**

**Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Strawberries*, N.S. Reg. 6/95, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 95-21 dated January 3, 1995, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Strawberries*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

- 1 Subsection 3(1) of the *Crop Insurance Plan for Strawberries*, N.S. Reg. 6/95, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 95-21 dated January 3, 1995, is amended by
  - (a) repealing the definition of “General Regulations”; and
  - (b) striking out “General Regulations” in the definition of “terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance” and substituting “*General Crop Insurance Plans Regulations*”.
- 2 Section 6 of the regulations is amended by striking out “General Regulations” and substituting “*General Crop Insurance Plans Regulations*”.

---

**N.S. Reg. 114/2018**

Crop Insurance Plan for Tree Fruit

**Schedule “L”**

**Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Tree Fruit*, N.S. Reg. 121/2003, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2003-268 dated June 20, 2003, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Tree Fruit*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

Subsection 3(1) of the *Crop Insurance Plan for Tree Fruit*, N.S. Reg. 121/2003, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2003-268 dated June 20, 2003, is amended by striking out “Field” in the definition of “terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance”.

---

**N.S. Reg. 115/2018**

Crop Insurance Plan for Trees

**Schedule “M”**

**Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Trees*, N.S. Reg. 14/95, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 95-63 dated January 24, 1995, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Trees*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

- 1 The *Crop Insurance Plan for Trees*, N.S. Reg. 14/95, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 95-63 dated January 24, 1995, is amended by striking out “Field” in Section 2A, “terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance”.
- 2 The regulations are further amended by renumbering the first Section 8, added by N.S. Reg. 18/2012, as Section 7.

**N.S. Reg. 116/2018**

## Crop Insurance Plan for Vegetables

**Schedule “N”****Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Vegetables*, N.S. Reg. 192/2000, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2000-571 dated November 17, 2000, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Vegetables*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

1 Section 3 of the *Crop Insurance Plan for Vegetables*, N.S. Reg. 192/2000, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2000-571 dated November 17, 2000, is amended by

- (a) striking out “Field” in the definition of “terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance”; and
- (b) striking out “and Marketing” in the definition of “vegetables”.

2 Section 14 of the regulations is repealed and the following Section is substituted:

**Final seeding report**

- 14 (1) No later than 10 days after the final planting date, an insured person must file a final seeding report with the Commission on a seeding report form provided by the Commission for this purpose.
- (2) The final seeding report filed with the Commission must not be amended by an insured person without the written consent of the Commission.
- (3) The Commission may revise the final seeding report and adjust the premium accordingly, and shall notify an insured person in writing of any revision and adjustment.
- (4) An insured person is deemed to have agreed with the Commission’s revision and adjustment under subsection (3) unless the insured person notifies the Commission in writing no later than 10 days after the date the notification is mailed or delivered by the Commission that the insured person rejects the revision and adjustment.

- (5) After receiving notice from an insured person under subsection (4), the Commission may decide that the contract of insurance does not apply for the crop year in which the final seeding report was filed, and it shall notify the insured person in writing and refund any premium deposit paid for that crop year.
- (6) If no notice of rejection is provided under subsection (4), a final seeding report revised under subsection (3) constitutes the final report for the crop year.
- (7) If an insured person fails to file a final seeding report in any crop year, the Commission may do 1 of the following:
  - (a) prepare the final seeding report;
  - (b) deem the insured area to be nil.
- (8) The Commission shall mail or deliver a copy of any report prepared under subsection (7) to the insured person and the insured person shall pay the premium for the crop year for which the report was prepared.

---

**N.S. Reg. 117/2018**

Crop Insurance Plan for Weather

**Schedule "O"****Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Weather*, N.S. Reg. 124/2006, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2006-343 dated July 24, 2006, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: *sgd: Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Weather*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

Section 3 of the *Crop Insurance Plan for Weather*, N.S. Reg. 124/2006, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2006-343 dated July 24, 2006, is amended by striking out "Field" in the definition of "terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance".

**N.S. Reg. 118/2018**

Crop Insurance Plan for Winter Grain

**Schedule “P”****Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Crop Insurance Plan for Winter Grain*, N.S. Reg. 134/2002, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2002-487 dated November 1, 2002, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Crop Insurance Plan for Winter Grain*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

- 1 Section 3 of the *Crop Insurance Plan for Winter Grain*, N.S. Reg. 134/2002, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2002-487 dated November 1, 2002, is amended by striking out “Field” in the definition of “terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance”.
- 2 Section 17 of the regulations is repealed and the following Section is substituted:

**Final planting date**

- 17 The final date for planting winter grain in each Zone shall be announced by the Commission before the beginning of the crop year.

---

**N.S. Reg. 119/2018**

Maple Syrup Insurance Plan

**Schedule “Q”****Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission**

I certify that the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission, at a meeting held July 28, 2017, passed a motion to amend the *Maple Syrup Insurance Plan*, N.S. Reg. 11/2012, approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2012-6 dated January 10, 2012, in the manner set out in the attached.

The amendments to the regulations referred to above are effective on and after the date they are approved by the Governor in Council.

Dated and signed at Truro, Nova Scotia, on February 23, 2018.

Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission

per: sgd: *Bill MacLeod*  
Bill MacLeod, CEO

**Amendment to the *Maple Syrup Insurance Plan*  
made by the Nova Scotia Crop and Livestock Insurance Commission  
under Section 6 of Chapter 113 of the Revised Statutes of Nova Scotia, 1989,  
the *Crop and Livestock Insurance Act***

- 1 Subsection 3(1) of the *Maple Syrup Insurance Plan*, N.S. Reg. 11/2012 approved by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2012-6 dated January 10, 2012, is amended by
  - (a) repealing the definition of “General Regulations”; and
  - (b) striking out “Field” in the definition of “terms and conditions of the Contract of Insurance”.
- 2 Section 6 of the regulations is amended by striking out “General Regulations” and substituting “*General Crop Insurance Plans Regulations*”.

**N.S. Reg. 120/2018**

Made: July 3, 2018

Filed: July 4, 2018

Children and Family Services Regulations—amendment

Order in Council 2018-176 dated July 3, 2018  
Amendment to regulations made by the Governor in Council  
pursuant to Section 99 of the *Children and Family Services Act*

The Governor in Council on the report and recommendation of the Minister of Community Services dated May 2, 2018, and pursuant to Section 99 of Chapter 5 of the Acts of 1990, the *Children and Family Services Act*, is pleased to amend the *Children and Family Services Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 265/2016, made by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2016-311 dated December 23, 2016, in the form [manner] set forth in Schedule “A” attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation, effective on and after July 3, 2018.

**Schedule “A”**

**Amendment to the *Children and Family Services Regulations*  
made by the Governor in Council pursuant to  
Section 99 of Chapter 5 of the Acts of 1990,  
the *Children and Family Services Act***

Form 9 of the *Children and Family Services Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 265/2016, made by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2016-311 dated December 23, 2016, is repealed and the following form substituted:



**Form 9—Report to the Child Abuse Register:  
Notification of Finding of Abuse, Conviction or Appeal**

Nova Scotia Department of Community Services  
Service Delivery, Strategic Services

(The *Children and Family Services Regulations* require the Court and agencies to report any Supreme Court (Family Division) or Family Court finding or criminal conviction in which the victim of the abuse/offence is **under 19 years** of age at the time of the abuse/offence.)

**Information about offender/abuser:**

\_\_\_\_\_  
Surname                                      First name                                      Middle name(s)

Known aliases/nicknames: \_\_\_\_\_  
Previous surnames: \_\_\_\_\_  
Current mailing address: \_\_\_\_\_  
Date of birth: \_\_\_\_\_ (dd/mm/yyyy)                                      Gender: [ ] male [ ] female [ ] other  
Occupation: \_\_\_\_\_  
Finger Print Section (F.P.S.) #: \_\_\_\_\_ Local police file #: \_\_\_\_\_  
Type of abuse: [ ] physical [ ] sexual [ ] emotional  
SIN #: \_\_\_\_\_ MSI #: \_\_\_\_\_ Driver's licence master #: \_\_\_\_\_

**Information about victim/child:**

\_\_\_\_\_  
Surname of child/victim                                      First name                                      Middle name(s)  
Date of birth: \_\_\_\_\_ (dd/mm/yyyy)                                      Gender: [ ] male [ ] female [ ] other  
Relationship of abuser/offender to child: \_\_\_\_\_

**Information about offence/abuse:**

Place of offence/abuse: \_\_\_\_\_ Date of offence/abuse: \_\_\_\_\_  
Investigating police agency: \_\_\_\_\_ Police officer name: \_\_\_\_\_  
Investigating children's services agency: \_\_\_\_\_  
Signature of child protection worker: \_\_\_\_\_

**Court Information**

Court type: \_\_\_\_\_ Court location: \_\_\_\_\_ Court file #: \_\_\_\_\_  
Date of finding/conviction: \_\_\_\_\_ (dd/mm/yyyy) Presiding Judge/Justice: \_\_\_\_\_  
Sentence upon criminal conviction (if applicable) \_\_\_\_\_

**Details of Court finding/conviction:**

- [ ] Finding under s. 22(2)(a), *Children and Family Services Act*  
[ ] Finding under s. 22(2)(c), *Children and Family Services Act*  
[ ] Finding under s. 63(3), *Children and Family Services Act*  
[ ] Criminal conviction  
    [ ] 151                      sexual interference  
    [ ] 152                      invitation to sexual touching  
    [ ] 153                      sexual exploitation

- 153.1 sexual exploitation of a person with a disability
- 155 incest
- 160(3) bestiality in the presence of or by a child
- 162 voyeurism
- 163.1(2) making child pornography
- 163.1(3) distribution of child pornography
- 163.1(4) possession of child pornography
- 163.1(4.1) accessing child pornography
- 170 parent or guardian procuring sexual activity
- 171 householder permitting sexual activity
- 171.1(1) making sexually explicit material available to child
- 172 corrupting children
- 172.1 luring a child
- 172.2(1) agreement or arrangement-sexual offence against child
- 173(2) indecent exposure
- 213(1.1) communicating to provide sexual services for consideration
- 215(1)(b) failure to provide necessities
- 218 abandoning child
- 220 causing death by criminal negligence
- 221 causing bodily harm by criminal negligence
- 235(1) murder
- 236 manslaughter
- 239 attempt to commit murder
- 243 concealing body of a child
- 244.1 causing bodily harm with intent—air gun or pistol
- 244.2(1) discharging firearm—recklessness
- 245 administering a noxious thing
- 246 overcoming resistance to commission of offence
- 266 assault
- 267 assault with a weapon or causing bodily harm
- 268 aggravated assault
- 269 unlawfully causing bodily harm
- 269.1(1) torture
- 271 sexual assault with a weapon
- 272 threats to a third party or causing bodily harm
- 273(1) aggravated sexual assault
- 279 kidnapping
- 279.011(1) trafficking of person under 18 years
- 279.02(2) material benefit—trafficking of person under 18 years
- 279.03(2) withholding or destroying travel documents relating to trafficking of person under 18 years
- 286.1(2) obtaining sexual services for consideration from person under 18 years
- 286.2(2) material benefit from sexual services provided by person under 18 years
- 286.3(2) procuring—person under 18 years
- Other: \_\_\_\_\_

**A copy of any written decision or order must be filed with this report.**

**Certification of court officer:**

Finding/conviction **certified** at \_\_\_\_\_ this \_\_\_\_\_, 20 \_\_\_\_\_.

\_\_\_\_\_  
Prothonotary/Clerk/Family Court Officer

**Appeal results:**

- Conviction/finding appealed  
 Conviction/finding upheld (date)  
 Conviction/finding overturned (date)

Certified at \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_.

\_\_\_\_\_  
Registrar

**See Reverse Side of Page for Address and Circulation Procedures**

**Address and Circulation**

[Reverse side of form]

**Filing process:****Original, Duplicate #1 and Duplicate #2**

To be filed with the Court at the same time as the criminal information is filed with the Court OR in the case of an agency application or proceeding under the *Children and Family Services Act* at the same time the application forms/documentation are filed with the Court.

**Duplicate #2**

Court's file copy

**Circulation process:****Original (initial report to the Child Abuse Register)**

If a conviction is entered or a finding is made, the original copy filed with the Court must be completed and certified by the Court Clerk/Family Court Officer and forwarded to:

Child Abuse Register  
 Solution and Support Division  
 Department of Community Services  
 P.O. Box 696  
 Halifax NS B3J 2T7

**Duplicate #1 (Appeal Copy)**

If a matter is appealed, duplicate #1 must be completed and certified by the Court Clerk/Family Court Officer upon disposition and forwarded to:

Child Abuse Register  
 Solution and Support Division  
 Department of Community Services  
 P.O. Box 696  
 Halifax NS B3J 2T7

**Duplicate #2**

Court's final file copy

**N.S. Reg. 121/2018**

Made: July 3, 2018

Filed: July 4, 2018

Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations—amendment

Order in Council 2018-177 dated July 3, 2018

Amendment to regulations made by the Governor in Council pursuant to Section 14 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act*

The Governor in Council on the report and recommendation of the Minister of Service Nova Scotia dated May 9, 2018, and pursuant to Section 14 of Chapter 11 of the Acts of 2005, the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act*, is pleased to amend the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 286/2009, made by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2009-399 dated September 24, 2009, in the manner set forth in Schedule “A” attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation, effective on and after July 3, 2018.

**Schedule “A”**

**Amendment to the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations*  
made by the Governor in Council under Section 14  
of Chapter 11 of the Acts of 2005,  
the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act***

- 1 (1) Section 3 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 286/2009, made by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2009-399 dated September 24, 2009, is amended by adding the following definitions where they belong in alphabetical order:

“Argus Media” means *Argus US Products* produced by Argus Media Group;

“Oil Price Information Service” means the *OPIS Full Day Close Spots Report* produced by Oil Price Information Service, an IHS Markit company;

- (2) Section 3 of the regulations is further amended by repealing the definition of “reported product price” and substituting the following definition:

“reported product price” for a type of petroleum product means the reported product price determined in accordance with Section 15B;

- 2 Clause 14(2)(b) of the regulations is amended by striking out “Section 15” and substituting “Section 15 or 15A”.
- 3 The regulations are further amended by adding the following Sections immediately after Section 15:

**Reducing price if retailer runs out of Grade 1—Regular gasoline**

**15A (1)** If a retailer runs out of Grade 1—Regular gasoline, the retailer may sell Grade 3—Premium gasoline at a price that is no lower than the minimum retail price for Grade 1—Regular gasoline for the zone where the point of sale is located until the retailer receives a delivery of Grade 1—Regular gasoline.

- (2) Except as required by the *Motive Fuel and Fuel Oil Approval Regulations* made under the *Environment Act* or by the *Weights and Measures Act* (Canada), a retailer must not promote, advertise or use signage to indicate a change in price permitted by subsection (1).

- (3) A retailer must immediately stop selling Grade 3—Premium gasoline at a price permitted by subsection (1) when the retailer receives a delivery of Grade 1—Regular gasoline.

**Reported product price**

**15B (1)** The reported product price for a type of petroleum product is the daily New York Harbour price reported for that type of product in 1 of the following reporting sources, unless the Board has prescribed a different reporting source in accordance with subsections (2) through (4):

- (a) the Platts Report;
  - (b) Argus Media, if the relevant data is not available from the Platts Report;
  - (c) the Oil Price Information Service, if the relevant data is not available from the Platts Report or Argus Media;
  - (d) the Bloomberg Guide, if the relevant data is not available from the Platts Report, Argus Media or the Oil Price Information Service.
- (2) If the market conditions change in such a way that there is a significant difference between the New York Harbour price and the price charged to wholesalers and wholesaler-retailers, the Board may on its own motion investigate whether a different reporting source is just and reasonable.
- (3) On application by any of the following, the Board must carry out an investigation under subsection (2):
- (a) a retailer, wholesaler or wholesaler-retailer;
  - (b) any 5 persons, firms or corporations;
  - (c) the Minister.
- (4) Following an investigation, the Board may make an order prescribing a different reporting source to be used for the reported product price, but no order may be made by the Board until a public hearing or inquiry is held.

4 Subsection 16(3) of the regulations is amended by striking out “noon”.

5 Subsection 17(4) of the regulations is amended by repealing clause (d) and substituting the following clauses:

- (d) whether additional margin is required for biocomponents of ultra-low-sulfur diesel;
- (e) whether additional margin is required for ethanol blending of gasoline;
- (f) whether additional margin is required for new gasoline and ultra-low-sulfur diesel products;
- (g) whether additional margin is required for requirements set by the Government of Canada related to biocomponents of ultra-low-sulfur diesel products;
- (h) whether additional margin is required for new technologies related to the refining, wholesaling, and retailing of gasoline and ultra-low-sulfur diesel products;

- (i) whether additional margin is required for components of gasoline and ultra-low-sulfur diesel products not currently priced;
- (j) the factors set out in subsection 14(3).

6 The regulations are further amended by adding the following Section immediately after Section 24:

**Interim order in emergency situation**

**24A (1)** In this Section, an “emergency situation” means a situation that in the Board’s opinion threatens the security of the petroleum supply, including any of the following situations:

- (a) a disruption to the supply of a petroleum product resulting from an increase in the rack rate charged to wholesalers and wholesaler-retailers that leads wholesalers and wholesaler-retailers to not sell a petroleum product because they are not receiving a sufficient wholesale margin;
- (b) a shortage of supply of a petroleum product to wholesalers and wholesaler-retailers that affects 1 or more zones.

- (2) Despite subsection 24(3), in an emergency situation the Board may make an interim order to temporarily prescribe interim fixed wholesale prices, maximum retail prices or minimum and maximum retail mark-ups until the public hearing or inquiry required by subsection 24(3) can be held.

7 Clause 25(b) of the regulations is amended by striking out “ultra-low-sulphur” and substituting “ultra-low-sulfur”.

---

**N.S. Reg. 122/2018**

Made: July 3, 2018

Filed: July 4, 2018

Public Services Sustainability General Regulations—amendment

Order in Council 2018-179 dated July 3, 2018

Amendment to regulations made by the Governor in Council  
pursuant to Section 29 of the *Public Services Sustainability (2015) Act*

The Governor in Council on the report and recommendation of the Minister of Labour Relations dated June 26, 2018, and pursuant to Section 29 of Chapter 34 of the Acts of 2015, the *Public Services Sustainability (2015) Act*, is pleased to amend the *Public Services Sustainability General Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 128/2017, made by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2017-207 dated August 22, 2017, to make additional designations of certain persons as not being “public-sector employees” in the manner set forth in Schedule “A” attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation, effective on and after July 3, 2018.

## Schedule "A"

**Amendment to the *Public Services Sustainability General Regulations*  
made by the Governor in Council under Section 29 of  
Chapter 34 of the Acts of 2015,  
the *Public Services Sustainability (2015) Act***

Section 3 of the *Public Services Sustainability General Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 128/2017, made by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2017-207 dated August 22, 2017, is amended by adding the following rows at the end of the table in clause (a):

Tourism Nova Scotia	NSGEU, Local 98
Tibbetts Home for Special Care (Wilmot)	United Brotherhood of Carpenters and Joiners of America, Local 2004
Nova Scotia Community College	NSGEU, Local 267
Tri-County Regional Centre for Education	NSGEU, Local 74
Annapolis Valley Regional Centre for Education	NSGEU, Local 73
South Shore Regional Centre for Education	NSGEU, Local 70
Halifax Regional Centre for Education	NSGEU, Local 53
Halifax Regional Centre for Education	CUPE, Local 5047
Workers' Compensation Board of Nova Scotia	NSGEU, Local 55

**N.S. Reg. 123/2018**

Made: July 3, 2018

Filed: July 4, 2018

## On-site Services Advisory Board Regulations—repeal

Order in Council 2018-184 dated July 3, 2018

Repeal of regulations made by the Governor in Council  
pursuant to Section 110 of the *Environment Act*

The Governor in Council on the report and recommendation of the Minister of Environment dated May 8, 2018, and pursuant to Section 110 of Chapter 1 of the Acts of 1994-95, the *Environment Act*, is pleased to repeal the *On-site Services Advisory Board Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 149/2002, made by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 2002-548 dated December 6, 2002, effective on and after July 3, 2018.

**N.S. Reg. 124/2018**

Made: July 3, 2018

Filed: July 4, 2018

Solid Waste-Resource Management Regulations—amendment

Order in Council 2018-185 dated July 3, 2018

Amendment to regulations made by the Governor in Council  
pursuant to Section 102 of the *Environment Act*

The Governor in Council on the report and recommendation of the Minister of Environment dated May 3, 2018, and pursuant to Section 102 of Chapter 1 of the Acts of 1994-95, the *Environment Act*, is pleased to amend the *Solid Waste-Resource Management Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 25/96, made by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 96-79 dated February 6, 1996, in the form [manner] set forth in Schedule “A”, attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation, effective on and after July 3, 2018.

**Schedule “A”****Amendment to the *Solid Waste-Resource Management Regulations*  
made by the Governor in Council under Section 102  
of Chapter 1 of the Acts of 1994-95,  
the *Environment Act***

- 1 Section 5 of the *Solid Waste-Resource Management Regulations*, N.S. Reg. 25/96, made by the Governor in Council by Order in Council 96-79 dated February 6, 1996, is amended by repealing subsections (4), (5), (6) and (7).
- 2 The regulations are further amended by adding the following Section immediately after Section 5:

**5A Resource Recovery Fund Board composition**

- (1) The Minister shall be entitled to appoint 3 persons to be members of the Board.
- (2) The Minister shall appoint 1 of the persons described in subsection (1) to be the Chair of the Board and determine the term of office of the Chair.
- (3) The Minister shall appoint 1 of the persons described in subsection (1) to be the Vice Chair, who may act as the alternative Chair in the absence of the Chair or in the case of a vacancy, and determine the term of office of the Vice Chair.
- (4) The Board shall appoint no fewer than 4 and no more than 12 persons to be members of the Board.
- (5) Persons appointed under subsection (4) must include all of the following:
  - (a) at least 1 person representing a region identified in Section 39;
  - (b) a representative of the Union of Nova Scotia Municipalities nominated by the Union of Nova Scotia Municipalities.



**N.S. Reg. 125/2018**

Made: July 5, 2018

Filed: July 5, 2018

Proclamation, S. 29, S.N.S. 2017, c. 7

Order in Council 2018-190 dated July 5, 2018  
Proclamation made by the Governor in Council  
pursuant to Section 29 of the  
*Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act*

The Governor in Council on the report and recommendation of the Attorney General and Minister of Justice dated February 13, 2018, and pursuant to Section 29 of Chapter 7 of the Acts of 2017, the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act*, is pleased to order and declare by proclamation that Chapter 7 of the Acts of 2017, the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act*, do come into force on and not before July 5, 2018.

PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA

**sgd: Arthur J. LeBlanc**

G/S

ELIZABETH THE SECOND, by the Grace of God,  
of the United Kingdom, Canada and Her Other  
Realms and Territories, Queen, Head of the  
Commonwealth, Defender of the Faith.

TO ALL TO WHOM THESE PRESENTS SHALL COME, OR WHOM THE SAME MAY IN ANY WISE  
CONCERN,

GREETING:

**A PROCLAMATION**

WHEREAS in and by Section 29 of Chapter 7 of the Acts of 2017, the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act*, it is enacted as follows:

- 29** This Act comes into force on such day as the Governor in Council orders and declares by proclamation.

AND WHEREAS it is deemed expedient that Chapter 7 of the Acts of 2017, the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act*, do come into force on and not before July 5, 2018;

NOW KNOW YE THAT WE, by and with the advice of the Executive Council of Nova Scotia, do by this Our Proclamation order and declare that Chapter 7 of the Acts of 2017, the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act*, do come into force on and not before July 5, 2018, of which all persons concerned are to take notice and govern themselves accordingly.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF We have caused these  
our Letters to be made Patent and the Great Seal of  
Nova Scotia to be hereunto affixed.

WITNESS, Our Trusty and Well Beloved His Honour  
Arthur J. LeBlanc, ONS, Q.C., Lieutenant Governor of  
the Province of Nova Scotia.

AT Our Government House in the Halifax Regional Municipality, this 5th day of July in the year of Our Lord two thousand and eighteen and in the sixty-seventh year of Our Reign.

BY COMMAND:

**sgd: Honourable Mark Furey**  
Provincial Secretary  
Attorney General and Minister of Justice

---

**N.S. Reg. 126/2018**

Made: July 5, 2018

Filed: July 5, 2018

Intimate Images and Cyber-protection General Regulations

Order in Council 2018-191 dated July 5, 2018  
Regulations made by the Governor in Council  
pursuant to subsection 15(2) of the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act*

The Governor in Council on the report and recommendation of the Attorney General and Minister of Justice dated May 8, 2018, and pursuant to subsection 15(2) of Chapter 7 of the Acts of 2017, the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act*, is pleased to make new regulations in the form set forth in Schedule “A” attached to and forming part of the report and recommendation, effective on and after July 5, 2018.

**Schedule “A”**

**General Regulations Respecting Intimate Images and Cyber-protection  
made by the Governor in Council under subsection 15(2)  
of Chapter 7 of the Acts of 2017,  
the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act***

**Citation**

1 These regulations may be cited as the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection General Regulations*.

**Definitions**

2 In these regulations,

“Act” means the *Intimate Images and Cyber-protection Act*;

“personal information” means personal information as defined in the *Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act*.

**Agency powers**

3 For the purpose of clause 12(1)(g) of the Act, it is prescribed as another service of the agency that the agency may advise a person or the person’s parent or guardian if the agency receives

(a) any communication indicating that the person might be named as a respondent in an application under Section 5 of the Act; or

- (b) a request for voluntary dispute-resolution services involving the person as a potential disputant.

**Agency's authority and duties in regard to personal information**

- 4 (1) The agency may collect personal information related to intimate image distribution without consent or cyber-bullying from any person or public body, including police agencies and schools.
- (2) The agency must not disclose any personal information it collects unless at least 1 of the following applies:
- (a) the individual the information is about consents to the disclosure;
- (b) in the agency's opinion, the disclosure is necessary for the agency to exercise the powers and provide the services set out in Section 12 of the Act and in Section 3; or
- (c) the disclosure is required by law.

---

**N.S. Reg. 127/2018**

Made: July 5, 2018

Filed: July 6, 2018

Prescribed Petroleum Products Prices

Order dated July 5, 2018  
made by the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board  
pursuant to Section 14 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act*  
and Sections 16 to 19 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations*

**Order**

**M08778**

**In the matter of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act***

**- and -**

**In the matter of prescribing prices for petroleum products  
pursuant to Section 14 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act* and  
Sections 16 to 19 of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations***

**Before:** Murray E. Doehler, CPA, CA, P.Eng., Member  
Jennifer L. Nicholson, CPA, CA, Member

**Whereas** the purpose of the *Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations* is to ensure just and reasonable prices for specified petroleum products taking into consideration the objectives of preserving the availability of such products in rural areas, stabilizing prices of such products and minimizing the variances in prices of such products across the Province;

**And whereas** the Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board (Board) considered the manner in which it would proceed to set petroleum product prices in its decision, 2006 NSUARB 108, issued on October 16, 2006;

**And whereas** the Board revised the wholesale margin effective January 4, 2013, in its decision, 2012 NSUARB 213, issued on December 12, 2012;

**And whereas** the Board revised the retail margin and the transportation allowance effective October 28, 2016, in its decision, 2016 NSUARB 168, issued on September 26, 2016;

**And whereas** the average of the average of the daily high and low reported product prices (in Canadian cents) for the week ended July 4, 2018, are:

Grade 1 Regular gasoline	73.2¢ per litre
Ultra-low-sulfur diesel oil	75.8¢ per litre

**Now therefore** the Board prescribes the benchmark prices for petroleum products to be:

Gasoline:	
Grade 1	73.2¢ per litre
Grade 2	76.2¢ per litre
Grade 3	79.2¢ per litre
Ultra-low-sulfur diesel oil	75.8¢ per litre

**And now therefore** the Board has determined, based on historical data regarding price changes and to achieve revenue neutrality, it is appropriate to apply, and the Board so orders, forward averaging corrections of:

Gasoline:	plus 0.4¢ per litre
Ultra-low-sulfur diesel oil:	plus 0.3¢ per litre

**And now therefore** the Board prescribes the prices for petroleum products as set forth in Schedule “A” effective on and after 12:01 a.m., July 6, 2018.

**Dated** at Halifax, Nova Scotia, this 5th day of July, 2018.

sgd: *Lisa Wallace*  
Clerk of the Board

#### Schedule “A”

**Prices Prescribed for Petroleum Products  
under the *Petroleum Products Pricing Act* and the  
*Petroleum Products Pricing Regulations*  
effective on and after 12:01 a.m. on July 6, 2018**

Nova Scotia Petroleum Price Schedule								
Petroleum Prices in Cents/Litre					Self-Service Pump Prices		Full-Service Pump Prices	
					(Pump Prices includes 15% HST)			
	Base Wholesale Price	Fed. Excise Tax	Prov. Tax	Wholesale Selling Price	Min	Max	Min	Max
<b>Zone 1</b>								
Regular Unleaded	80.9	10.0	15.5	106.4	128.2	130.4	128.2	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	83.9	10.0	15.5	109.4	131.7	133.9	131.7	999.9
Premium Unleaded	86.9	10.0	15.5	112.4	135.1	137.3	135.1	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	83.4	4.0	15.4	102.8	124.1	126.3	124.1	999.9
<b>Zone 2</b>								
Regular Unleaded	81.4	10.0	15.5	106.9	128.8	131.0	128.8	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	84.4	10.0	15.5	109.9	132.2	134.4	132.2	999.9
Premium Unleaded	87.4	10.0	15.5	112.9	135.7	137.9	135.7	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	83.9	4.0	15.4	103.3	124.7	126.8	124.7	999.9

<b>Zone 3</b>								
Regular Unleaded	81.8	10.0	15.5	107.3	129.3	131.4	129.3	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	84.8	10.0	15.5	110.3	132.7	134.9	132.7	999.9
Premium Unleaded	87.8	10.0	15.5	113.3	136.2	138.3	136.2	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	84.3	4.0	15.4	103.7	125.1	127.3	125.1	999.9
<b>Zone 4</b>								
Regular Unleaded	81.9	10.0	15.5	107.4	129.4	131.6	129.4	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	84.9	10.0	15.5	110.4	132.8	135.0	132.8	999.9
Premium Unleaded	87.9	10.0	15.5	113.4	136.3	138.5	136.3	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	84.4	4.0	15.4	103.8	125.2	127.4	125.2	999.9
<b>Zone 5</b>								
Regular Unleaded	81.9	10.0	15.5	107.4	129.4	131.6	129.4	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	84.9	10.0	15.5	110.4	132.8	135.0	132.8	999.9
Premium Unleaded	87.9	10.0	15.5	113.4	136.3	138.5	136.3	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	84.4	4.0	15.4	103.8	125.2	127.4	125.2	999.9
<b>Zone 6</b>								
Regular Unleaded	82.6	10.0	15.5	108.1	130.2	132.4	130.2	999.9
Mid-Grade Unleaded	85.6	10.0	15.5	111.1	133.6	135.8	133.6	999.9
Premium Unleaded	88.6	10.0	15.5	114.1	137.1	139.3	137.1	999.9
Ultra-Low-Sulfur Diesel	85.1	4.0	15.4	104.5	126.0	128.2	126.0	999.9